ATIONS CERD

Di str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1343
of all Forms of 12 August 1999
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-fifth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1343rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 9 August 1999, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. ABOUL- NASR
|later: M. SHERIFIS
CONTENTS

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (conti nued)

GENERAL DEBATE

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in States parties whose
reports are excessively overdue

Mal di ves

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 43706 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1343
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG MEASURES AND
URGENT ACTI ON PROCEDURES (agenda item 3) (continued)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that the situation in central Africa, where there were
mllions of refugees and far nore victins than in Kosovo, warranted sone kind
of statenment or decision by the Commttee. The secretariat could prepare a
file of relevant docunmentation on the crisis, to which nmenbers could add, and
whi ch woul d certainly include the recent request fromseven central African
heads of State for refugee assistance fromthe United Nations, the inportant
statements made by the United Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts on
her recent African trip, the Secretary-Ceneral's statement on Sierra Leone,
and pertinent statements by the Organization of African Unity (OQAU). He
suggested that M. Garval ov should work with a small open-ended worki ng group
to draft a decision.

2. It was so deci ded.

GENERAL DEBATE

3. The CHAIRMAN said that he thought a nunmber of issues merited discussion
For instance, a way had to be found, as required by article 9, paragraph 2,

of the Convention, to report to the General Assenbly on the Comrittee's

concl udi ng observati ons concerning the periodic reports and, at the sane tine,
on the States parties' reactions to its observations; unfortunately, that was
often not feasible because of the time needed to receive their reactions.

4, Anot her issue was that the Conmittee had come to rely on sources of
informati on other than the States parties thenselves as stipulated in
article 9, and there was a question of fairness involved in citing such
outside findings without first ascertaining the reliability of the

non- gover nment al sources or press reports fromwhich they were drawn, or at
|l east inform ng the States parties about the informati on in advance.

5. The Committee might consider organizing its consideration of reports
differently, particularly regarding the time the country rapporteurs were
allowed for their presentations, which could be inordinately long. It should

al so give thought to the desirability of doing sone of its work in informa
meetings in the course of the session, as other bodies did.

6. There were, furthernore, conpeting requirenments that needed
clarification: the Conmmittee had to uphold universal human rights standards
and make equal demands on all States parties; yet it also had to take into
account the particular difficulties and the prevailing conditions faced by

i ndi vidual States. In his view, human rights standards could not be applied
absolutely in all cases.

7. M. BANTON, recalling that an earlier general debate had resulted in the
general recomrendati on on self-determ nati on (General Recomendati on XXI),
suggested that the Commttee m ght discuss topics for other genera
recomendati ons.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 3

8. He agreed with the Chairman that the organization of work could be

i nproved: the Commi ttee should consider how to exanmine nore reports w thout

| engthening its session; how to balance the tinme allotted to del egations as
opposed to Comm ttee menbers; and how to apportion nore fairly the time spent
by Committee nenbers in asking questions, so that the ones speaking |l ater were
not given short shrift. In his view, however, sone of the problens referred
to by the Chairman woul d be better dealt with on a case-by-case basis, as they
arose, rather than discussed now - anong them were the issues of outside
sources, of the country rapporteur's role vis-a-vis the State party, and of
the all owance to be nade for the particular circunstances of a given State

party.

9. The new revi ew procedure in the case of States parties whose reports
were seriously overdue had been a great success, if only because it pronpted
nost of themto request a postponenent. Success, however, neant that there
woul d eventually be nore reports to consider; even so, many menbers felt that
a wel | -organi zed three-week session would be sufficient. |In order to dea

with all the reports, the Commttee shoul d distinguish between conprehensive
periodic reports and the much shorter updating reports; for the latter, it
could invite the State party not to send a del egation but, rather, one or nore
representatives fromtheir permanent mssions. The Commttee, proceeding from
its know edge of the particular situations, could also authorize the Chairman
to take case-by-case decisions on the tinme to be allotted to individua
reports: for instance, the forthcom ng report of Tonga, which would not be
sendi ng a del egation, should require no nore than 20 m nutes; and the reports
of Iceland or the Holy See would not be expected to require as much tine as,
say, those of France or the Netherlands. |In order to work nore efficiently,

of course, the Commttee would have to inmprove its way of briefing State party
del egations: the docunent on the matter which, he believed, had been adopted
at the previous session should be distributed to both del egati ons and

m ssions, which were not well informed about Comrittee procedures.

10. On the issue of balancing the tine allotted to del egations and to
Committee nmenbers, del egations could be instructed to speak in their

i ntroductions only about events subsequent to the preparation of the reports;
in that case, of course, backlogs in the consideration of reports had to be
avoi ded. Secondly, the country rapporteurs should |limt the Iength of their
presentations, with exceptions in the event of special circunstances; and al
Committee nmenbers woul d have to cooperate in trying to finish asking questions
by the end of the afternoon neeting. The Chairman should be nore directive in
t hat respect, asking publicly for brevity and announcing that the Comm ttee

wi shed to conclude a given report by the mddle of the next nmorning' s neeting.

11. Furthernore, tine should be equitably allotted anong the Conmittee
menbers who spoke first and those who spoke later. Time |linmts could never be
enforced, but the Chairman could give rem nders as he saw probl ens devel opi ng.

12. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the current general debate should be limted
to pinpointing the issues that needed consideration, deferring detailed

di scussions and decisions until later. The backl og was not a serious problem
since the Conmittee had only 15 overdue reports as opposed to hundreds in some




CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 4

of the other treaty bodies. On the point M. Banton had rai sed about State
party briefings, he asked the Secretary if a decision on procedures had
actual ly ever been adopted.

13. M. HUSBANDS (Secretary of the Cormittee) said it was his recollection
that M. Banton had put forward a text dealing with briefing procedures on
two occasions but that in both instances sone nmenbers of the Conmittee had
objected that it set overly rigid tinme linmts on speakers and especially on
del egations. He believed the conclusion had been that the docunent could be
used informally as background material for the secretariat when it briefed
del egations, but that it should not be distributed.

14. The CHAI RMAN stressed the inportance of building an atnosphere of
di al ogue and trust with a reporting State.

15. M. WO FRUM said that he thought it should be a priority to devise a
way of reporting on State party reactions to the Cormittee's concl udi ng
observations, a problemthat arose generally at the sumrer sessions. The
guestion was the formin which the State party conments shoul d be published
and whet her they should be acconpanied by a further Comrittee statenment as
wel | .

16. He agreed with M. Banton that the question of sources of information
shoul d be dealt with on a case-by-case basis. At any rate, in addition to
foll owi ng the procedural rule that sources nust be disclosed, nmenbers could
al ways nake a point of citing outside information in the formof a question
rather than a foregone conclusion. He did not think such information need be
comuni cated in advance to the State party involved, although he would be
willing to give sone oral indication ahead of time to the del egation. The
Committee's policy should not be to take a State by surprise.

17. The length of tine allotted for consideration of a report should, again
be determ ned on a case-by-case basis. The Chairman should not, however,
become a rigid taskmaster. As to fairness with regard to Committee
guestioning, those menmbers who spoke | ater were supposed not to reiterate

poi nts already nade, so that they could fairly be given less tine. Since

the backl og was, in fact, not large, there was no need to over-organize

procedures; that would be the best way to kill a fruitful dialogue. He was
totally against differentiating between the tinme allotted for the various
country reports, for that would be discrimnatory. 1In the case of Iceland and

the Holy See specifically, their reports had afforded an opportunity for very
interesting and nmutually instructive discussions. Only when a State party had
submtted no report could less tine be devoted to a country.

18. He agreed with M. Banton about the inportance of genera
recommendati ons, and all nenbers shoul d give thought to possible topics.
Produci ng a general recomrendati on was a good way for the Committee nenbers
to find common ground.

19. He woul d add a further issue: the Committee's relations with other
treaty bodies. No nenber had ever reported back to the Conmittee under the
current liaison-officer system a half-day could be set aside to hear about
Committee-related activities of the other treaty bodies.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 5

20. The CHAIRMAN said that the matter had been di scussed at a neeting of
persons chairing the human rights treaty bodies, but the problem as always,
was one of funding. For instance, it would have been useful for himto attend
nmeetings of other bodies, but no funds had been available for that purpose.

I ndeed, he had often had to reply to fax and ot her nessages at his own
expense. The CGeneral Assenbly had seem ngly responded favourably to his
suggestion that the treaty body chairpersons should be present during the
Assenbl y's deliberations on the work of the bodies concerned; but the question
of fundi ng made hi m doubt whether any action would result.

21. M. de GOUTTES said that, according to the Commttee's decision 1 (XL)
its menbers must have access to all avail abl e sources of informtion,
governmental and non-governnmental. It was inportant, in that regard, that
sources of information should be indicated in all cases.

22. Referring to the country rapporteurs' questioning procedures, he did not
think that the Cormittee could adopt the nethod, used in certain other bodies,
of preparing lists of issues; apart from anything el se, the considerable

i ntersessional work required woul d make the cost prohibitive. The Commttee
coul d perhaps have nmore contact with the permanent nissions concer ned,
indicating, inter alia, the general nature of the questions that would be
raised. Wth regard to the length of sessions, he agreed that the Comm ttee
shoul d still strive to conplete its work within a three-week peri od.

23. It was inportant to all ow del egations sufficient time to reply to the
Committee's questions and conments, particularly when, as in the case of the
Islami c Republic of Iran, they had taken the trouble to bring a nunmber of
specially briefed experts. Lastly, he shared the view that the Conmttee's
concl udi ng observations coul d perhaps be acconpanied by the State party's
reactions to them

24, The CHAI RMAN agreed on the need to give visiting del egations nore timnme
to speak, although, in the case of the Islam c Republic of Iran, the
del egation itself had caused the tinme difficulty.

25. M. van BOVEN said that the Committee's position and nethods with regard
to relations with States parties needed clarification. He agreed that the

| atter should be encouraged to comment on the Conmittee's concl uding
observations, perhaps being given a deadline for doing so in order to have
their reaction included in the Comrittee's report. He foresaw sone
difficulty, with regard to the task of the country rapporteur, in drawi ng up
lists of questions; to do so would take tinme and m ght necessitate specia
wor ki ng groups. But he woul d encourage sone prelimnary contact with the
State party, for exanple to indicate the type of questions that would be

rai sed. Information from other sources, such as non-governnenta

organi zati ons (NGOs), should be acceptable; but prelimnary contacts woul d
enhance the subsequent dial ogue by dispelling any inpression of an attenpt to
take the State party unawares.

26. He observed that the Committee's use of its early warning neasures had
occasionally given rise to some m sunderstandi ngs over the gross nature of the
violation in question, Australia being a case in point. The Comrittee had

i ndeed i nmproved its use of that approach, but whereas its inpact had at tines



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 6

been positive, as in the case of the Czech Republic with regard to the Romg,
it had been negligible in Rvanda and Bosni a and Herzegovi na, for example. It
was essential, therefore, that the Commttee should clearly explain its
notives to the State party whenever it adopted that special procedure.

27. VWi le greatly appreciating the work carried out by M. Banton, he

cauti oned agai nst over-organi zing the work of the Commttee, which should
retain its essential spontaneity. He was in favour of continuing to produce
general recomrendati ons, especially for the purpose of drawing attention to

t he scope of the Convention, with particular regard to article 1, paragraph 1
M sunder st andi ngs with a number of States parties in the past convinced him
that a sound grasp of the Convention was not all that w despread. One exanple
of a suitable subject for a general recomendati on was discrimnation in

housi ng, on which another treaty body had recently prepared a text for

adopti on.

28. In short, the Commttee should be doing nore to pronote awareness of its
wor k and of the Convention, both in general and in the framework of
preparations for the Wrld Conference agai nst Racism Racial Discrimnation
Xenophobi a and Rel ated Intol erance. He shared the view that the Committee's
concl udi ng observations were anong the em nently useful aspects of its work in
noni toring i nplementation of the Convention in States parties.

29. Ms. McDOUGALL said experience had shown that early contact between a
country rapporteur and a State party was practical and fruitful; but she was
not satisfied with the way in which consideration of sone topics could | apse
if, for instance, a State party clained unreadiness to provide a detailed
reply during the session in question and was invited to do so in the next
periodic report. She wondered whet her sonething could be done to avoid such
| ong del ays - for exanple, the indication of a deadline for the inclusion in
the Committee's report of a State party's witten response, including answers
on pending matters.

30. Wth regard to “short-notice” agenda itens, it would be useful if sone
of them such as the question of draft reconmendations for the forthcom ng
Worl d Conference, could have specific tines allotted for their consideration
It would help, too, if State party reports could be sent to the Commttee
menbers earlier; receipt of themonly two weeks before a session began nade
preparation difficult.

31. She was agai nst the idea of differentiating between the anounts of tine
allocated for States parties' reports, which seemed arbitrary, inflexible and
open to pitfalls.

32. She supported better |iaison with other relevant bodies, particularly
when that could be done with little or no financial inplications - for
exanpl e, participation in consideration of the racial discrimnation itemon
the current agenda of the Sub-Comm ssion on the Promption and Protection of
Human Ri ghts.

33. She regretted the | ack of collaboration with the work of the Specia
Rapporteur on contenporary forns of racism racial discrimnation and



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1343
page 7

xenophobi a and rel ated intol erance since that mght well lead to differing
approaches and confusion with regard to findings. Perhaps he should be
invited to attend the Committee's sessions.

34. The CHAIRMAN said that it was not for the Comrittee, the main treaty
body on racial discrimnation, to be approaching others working in that field,
but rather the contrary. As it happened, the Special Rapporteur had already
been invited to attend Committee meetings but had not done so. Neverthel ess,
the Conmittee mght feel that the matter was worth taking up again

35. M. SHERIFIS stressed that the Cormittee conpared nost favourably with
other simlar bodies in the way it carried out its tasks. But there was

al ways room for inprovenment, and he acknow edged the validity of various
suggestions nmade in the current debate. Wile he appreciated M. Banton's aim
of saving tinme and recogni zed the need to differentiate between conprehensive
and updating reports, it nmust be accepted that all States parties' reports
were of equal value. Large or small, their efforts deserved due recognition
for exanmple, Mauritania, a poor third world country, had dignified the
Conmittee with the presence of four of its highest-ranking officials.

36. The tim ng of consideration of “short-notice” agenda itens, as well as
bei ng deci ded by the Chairman, should have the agreement of all nmenbers. In
that regard, a decision could be taken on the draft prepared by M. Banton
subj ect to possible slight revision

37. States parties should be kept informed at all times of the Cormittee's
procedures. The question of how to deal with responses to the Conmittee's
concl udi ng observations was covered by article 9, paragraph 2, of the
Convention, which was mandatory. As to what should be done if a State party's
comments, referred to in the |last sentence of that paragraph, were, in the
Committee's view, irrelevant or unduly |long, he said that whatever procedure
m ght be deemed suitable in that regard nust apply w thout distinction

38. The problem of finance, including the incurring of personal expense,
menti oned by the Chairman was a matter than ought to be taken up

39. He expressed sone doubt as to whether the country rapporteurs should
furnish States parties with advance witten statenents, as that m ght nean
that the country rapporteurs’' coments would be available to States even
before the Conmittee nenbers who had designated them On the other hand, the
i dea of establishing prelimnary contacts was worth pursuing.

40. He agreed that further work was needed on the general recomendati ons,
whi ch represented an inportant part of the Cormittee’s work and served the
interests of the Convention and the States parties. The Conmittee was not,
however, a deliberative body which could be satisfied solely with the
decisions it adopted, but an expert body whose aimwas ultimately the
effective inplementati on of those deci sions.

41. While the idea of keeping abreast of deliberations in other relevant
human rights bodies had its nerits, attendance at their neetings was not
necessarily advisable, even if the sessions coincided and the financia
implications were mninmal, as the absence of one or two Committee nmenbers



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 8

woul d be detrimental to the work of the Committee itself. Perhaps a nessage
or address by the Conmttee Chairman or a Committee nmenber would suffice.

42. The Committee had done nmuch to facilitate its work with the Specia
Rapporteur on contenporary fornms of racism but its interest had al as not
elicited a coomensurate response on the part of the Special Rapporteur. The
bl ame for that should not be laid with the Comrittee.

43. M. GARVALQV, concurring with the other nenbers' comrents, said that
States parties needed to analyse the effectiveness of their policies against
raci al discrimnation, and one of the duties of the Commttee was to ensure
that they did so, either through dialogue or by offering its good offices.
The Conmittee should take a much firmer stand when confronted with statenents
to the effect that racial discrimnation did not exist in a country, and that
there was therefore no need to anend the Constitution, adopt specific

| egi slation, train | awenforcenent personnel or address discrimnation in the
education systemon the grounds that human rights teaching covered racia

di scrimnation as well.

44, On the subject of the effectiveness of the Conmttee' s very important
early warning and urgent procedures, he asked how quickly its decisions on
early warning cases reach the Ofice of the United Nations Hi gh Comr ssioner
for Human Rights and the Secretary-General of the United Nations, and whet her
they were pronptly submtted to and given due consideration by the

Security Council and other responsible United Nations bodies. The

Security Council should debate potentially explosive ethnic conflicts, and
shoul d not sinply neglect such topics under the pretext that they did not fal
under its purview. \What had happened in Kosovo, which had occurred |largely
owing to the failure of the United Nations to take preventive action through
the Security Council, reflected a dire disregard for the United Nations and
what it stood for.

45, A useful and acceptable contribution by the Conmttee to the forthcom ng
Worl d Conference neant draw ng upon the wi sdomof its nenbers and the wealth
of its 29 years of experience and called for an extra effort on the part of
the Committee nenbers to reach agreenment on concrete proposals for the

Wor | d Conf erence agenda.

46. The Committee had continuously put off a discussion on the issue of
mnorities, which required a unified approach, especially when States’ reports
were under consideration. The Commttee's request for information on ethnic
conposition and interest in ethnic and racial mnorities was politically
delicate for certain States, as it could |lead to a mi sapprehensi on anbng sone
ethnic groups and mnorities that the Commttee believed that they should have
nmore and special rights, and coul d even encourage demands for autonony,
secessi on or independence.

47. Committee nmenbers were not in agreenment as to whether self-determ nation
shoul d be considered an inalienable right of certain mnorities. Failure to
di scuss that and other mnority issues in depth and reach a comrn

under standi ng had |l ed to doubl e standards. For exanple, sone States were
considered, albeit tacitly, to be less ethnically diverse while others were
called to task for failure to recogni ze the existence of ethnic groups and



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 9

mnorities. In Europe, sone countries called their ethnic groups “ethnic
conmunities” or “ethnic mnorities”, while the Committee considered that
ethnic groups in other States were “national mnorities”, a termheavily |aden
with inplications. A nore conmon approach would help renove any sign of
ambiguity. On the subject of the right of self-determ nation, the Conmttee's
wel | -docunent ed position was that its recognition of the right of

sel f-determ nation should in no way be construed as neaning that it condoned
uni | ateral demands for secession or for violation of the territorial integrity
of a State.

48. M. VALENCI A RODRI GQUEZ said that, under article 9, the basic source of
information for the consideration of a State's report was the report itself,
al t hough the Comm ttee could, of course, use other sources as well. |In order
to avoid problens, it was inportant for Commttee nenbers to indicate clearly
the source of any information quoted, especially when it came from NGOs which
often quite naturally had views differing fromthose of the States, and to
make it clear that they were basing their questions on information from such
sources but passing no judgement as to their veracity.

49. The Committee should al ways encourage States to submt coments and
replies subsequent to the concl udi ng observations as a crucia

bui | di ng-bl ock for dialogue. Tinme was often short for the State party to
present its coments, but when one did, they should be sent to the

Ceneral Assenbly along with the Committee’ s concl udi ng observations, in
accordance with article 9. On the other hand, the Commi ttee should not attach
its own comments on such replies, as it had no authority to do so. It could,
however, subsequently consider the replies as new information for the

di scussion of the next report.

50. During the consideration of reports, del egations should confine

t hensel ves to briefing the Cormittee on new devel opnents since the drafting of
the periodic report. To give delegations tinme to respond to questions,
country rapporteurs should generally confine their statenments to 20

or 25 mnutes, with exceptions in certain cases, and other Comm ttee nmenbers
should Ilimt their statements to 8 to 10 minutes and avoi d repeati ng coments
made by the country rapporteurs.

51. Experience of the work of the Comm ttee showed that there was no reason
to require country rapporteurs to provide States with a copy of their
guestions and comrents prior to the discussion, as was the practice in other
treaty bodies. Prelimnary informal contacts would ensure that the del egation
was i nformed of the main issues that would be raised and of the sources to

whi ch reference would be nade. In many cases, it was not so nuch the State
party that would be interested in such prelimnary contacts as the NGGs. But
it was the duty of the country rapporteur to be available for such inform
consultation with the country’ s del egation

52. There was no reason to differentiate between the various reports that
the Conmittee could receive. Al should be treated equally, with the
exception of cases in which a State party submitted no report and coul d not
send a delegation to represent it before the Conmittee.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 10

53. The Committee need not attend the nmeetings of other human rights bodies
di scussing matters of racial discrimnation, as their reports would suffice.
The Committee could not inpose its presence on other bodies. On the other
hand, since the Conmittee was the only human rights body dealing with racia
di scrimnation which maintained a regular dialogue with States, bodies with
other ternms of reference would surely find it interesting to follow the
Conmittee’s deliberations.

54, M. SHAHI said that the general debate, especially the points raised by
M. van Boven, M. Banton and M. Garval ov, was proving extrenely useful

Under article 9, paragraph 2, of the Convention, the State party should be
able to have the last word. He endorsed M. Val encia Rodriguez' suggestion
that further coments on the concl udi ng observati ons should be treated as new
information. It was unlikely that there would be tine to include in the
Committee’s report to the General Assenmbly the conmments made by States whose
del egati ons appeared at the August session; and even less likely if the
Committee had to include its own views as well. He wi shed to know whet her the
Committee’s concl udi ng observati ons adopted at the March session were

i mredi ately distributed to the Sub-Commi ssion, the Special Rapporteur and the
Human Ri ghts Conmittee, or whether they had to wait for the Cormittee’ s annua
report. They should be made avail able to the Special Rapporteur and the

Sub- Commi ssi on wi thout delay, just as the work of the Special Rapporteur and
t he concl usi ons, decisions and resolutions of the Sub-Conmi ssion should be
circulated to the Conmittee nenbers i mredi ately, particularly as the sessions
of the two bodi es coincided in August.

55. The CHAI RMAN expressed the opinion that the concl udi ng observations
shoul d be di spatched to the Special Rapporteur only if he so requested. There
was no reason to forward such docunents to himautomatically.

56. Ms. ZQU said that the scheduling of the consideration of reports could
be i mproved, for instance, by avoiding consideration of any country reports
during the | ast week of each session. According to current practice, reports
were still being considered on the final Wednesday before the end of the
session, which left little tinme for consideration of the concl uding
observations. Sometimes draft concl udi ng observations were submtted

at 10 a.m and comments requested by 1 p.m, |eaving nmenbers with no tinme to
read the conclusions, let alone fornul ate opinions, and forcing the discussion
to take place in less than optiml conditions. Concluding observations were
highly inportant and were closely scrutinized by the countries concerned, so
they demanded greater care. The final week could be devoted to review
procedures, for instance. At the current session, the tinme - just three
meetings - allocated for the consideration of the Commttee' s 15 sets of

concl udi ng observations was sinply too short.

57. Menmbers did not receive country reports in sufficient time to read them
t horoughly before the session began, a problemthat was particularly acute for
country rapporteurs, who had to prepare detailed commrents. According to the
Secretariat, it was United Nations policy to distribute reports only when al
the | anguage versions were available. Surely an exception could be made in
the case of the nenbers, who really needed the docunments in good time?



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1343
page 11

58. She did not consider that a tine limt should be placed on statenents.
Members shoul d exercise self-restraint, particularly if time was short, in
order to ensure that other nmenbers, as well as the State party concerned, had
enough tine to speak

59. The CHAIRMAN recalled that, under rule 37 of the Cormittee's Rul es of
Procedure, he could suggest the setting of a tinme limt for speakers, although
menbers did not seemto be in favour of that solution. For the nmonent, he
woul d continue to appeal to nmenbers' self-restraint.

60. M. YUTZIS said that the main priority was flexibility. The Conmttee
had inproved its practice in several areas. It had cone out of its earlier

i solation and forged Iinks with other bodies, for instance in the preparations
for the Wrld Conference against Racism The Committee's country rapporteurs
had been able to explore the issues raised by country reports nore deeply and
provi de valuable material for the debate. The Comrittee's reconmendati ons
were taken into account nore and nore often by States parties and other treaty
bodi es. Menbers, especially country rapporteurs, received nuch nore
docunent ati on than before, fromthe Secretariat and from other sources. O
course, there was roomfor inprovement, but it was inportant not to jeopardize
those achi evenents.

61. The Committee should continue to use as many sources of information as
possi bl e, keep up its contacts with other treaty bodi es and give nore
attention to the duties of the country rapporteur. Menbers' questions or
coments should not be given to States parties in advance. He also felt that
nmore tinme should be allowed for the Conmttee' s general recommendati ons and

ot her comments of a general nature. However, it was also inportant to allow
enough tinme for the discussion of country reports, which had not been the case
with the Islam c Republic of Iran. The Conmittee had a | onger session, it was
true, but it was not just a question of considering nore reports: the
Committee nmust also inprove the quality of its work, particularly its

concl udi ng observati ons.

62. Ms. McDOUGALL, clarifying her earlier statenment, said that she had not
i ntended to suggest that a menmber of the Committee should attend whole
sessions of other human rights bodies. The Commttee could provide an input
into the work of those bodies by means, for instance, of a statenment by the
Chai rman at the begi nning of a session or by submitting a list of priority

i ssues, both of which had been done in recent years.

63. M. RECHETOQOV said that the Committee nust adopt a flexible approach if
it were not to destroy the relationship of trust and respect between itself
and States parties. Al reports should be allotted the same anount of tine,
and the present allocation of two nmeetings per report seemed adequate. O
course, any tinme which was not needed for the country report could be devoted
to other matters. The country rapporteur should speak for 35 to 40 m nutes,
and | engthy questions from ot her nmenbers should then be unnecessary.

64. The Committee should be cautious of trying to establish close relations
with all other human rights bodies. The interests of mainly political bodies,
such as the Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts and even, to sone extent, the

Sub- Commi ssi on were not necessarily the same as those of a body of experts



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1343
page 12

like the Committee. The Comm ttee should concentrate on building up good

relations with the other five treaty bodies. It should not be too concerned,
for example, if the Sub-Comm ssion or the Special Rapporteur did not always
share the Conmittee's views: it was natural in view of their different
mandat es.

65. The CHAI RMAN said that the general debate had provided a val uable
exchange of views. Perhaps one or two of the issues raised could be discussed
in greater detail at future sessions, with the aimof arriving at a forma
decision, if appropriate. |If any formal conclusion was reached concerning
relations with the Sub-Comm ssion, for exanple, an officer of that body m ght
be invited to a neeting of the Cormittee to discuss it.

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Revi ew of the inplenentation of the Convention in States parties whose
reports are excessively overdue

Mal di ves (CERD/ C/ 203/ Add. 1; A/ 47/18, paras. 69-74)

66. M. GARVALOV (Country Rapporteur) said that Ml dives had submitted its
fourth periodic report (CERD/ C/302/Add.1) in 1992, and the Conmittee had
considered it, in the absence of the State party, in August that year (see
docunment A/ 47/18, paras. 69-74). The fifth to seventh periodic reports were
overdue, but had not been received.

67. It was unfortunate that no State party representative was present at the
debate, since a nunber of inportant issues to which the Comrttee had drawn
attention in 1992 remai ned unanswered. |n paragraph 1 of the fourth periodic
report, for exanple, the State party concluded that, since no racia
discrimnation existed in Mldives, no specific legislation was required to

i mpl enent the provisions of the Convention. However, the Conmittee had al ways
mai ntai ned that a State party was obliged, if only as a precautionary neasure,
to enact specific legislation to give effect to the Convention, whether or not
it acknow edged the existence of racial discrimnation on its territory.

68. He wi shed to know whet her the Convention was directly applicable in the
courts of Maldives. There were reliable reports that, in recent years,

i ncreasi ng nunbers of mgrant workers and foreigners had taken up residence in
the country. He wondered what their real status was and whether they could
enjoy the protection of the Convention if they needed to go to court to seek
redress for acts of racial discrimnation. He would further like to know

whet her there was any prohibition of racial discrimnation in the Constitution
or other laws of the country.

69. He was inclined to believe that the reason why Ml di ves had not
submtted a periodic report since 1992 was that it needed technica

assi stance, since the fourth periodic report itself had not been prepared in
accordance with the Committee's guidelines. The Conmittee had recommended at
the tinme that the State party should take advantage of the assistance of the
Centre for Human Rights, as it was then called, in Geneva.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1343
page 13

70. Rel i abl e reports from Amesty International, the United States
Department of State and the Mnority Ri ghts G oup gave evi dence of
restrictions of certain rights, including sone of those listed in article 5 of
t he Convention. They included: wonen's and workers' rights; the activities
of political parties; freedom of assenbly, association and religion; and the
expression of criticismof the President or the Governnment. However, a new
Constitution had come into force in January 1998, which did provide for the
protection of certain human rights. Notable changes were that the Majlis, or
Parliament, was to be enlarged from48 to 50 seats; a formal, multi-candi date
contest was to be permtted for the Majlis nomi nation for the Presidency;
there was no restriction on the nunber of terns which a President m ght serve;
parliamentary inmunity had been introduced and parlianentary questions were to
be allowed; the rights of citizens had been increased; the office of

Audi t or - General had been created; the office of Conm ssioner for Elections had
been constitutionalized; and public officers were to be nore accountable. The
Conmittee woul d wel come further information about the new Constitution and

ot her changes, including the new Supreme Council for Islamc Affairs,
established in 1996 to advise the Government on Islamc affairs.

71. He al so had sone information about education in Ml dives, from sources
whi ch included the O fice of the United Nations Hi gh Comr ssioner for Human
Ri ghts. Education was not compul sory: there were three types of fornma
education, namely traditional Koranic schools, primary schools using the
nati onal | anguage, Dhivehi, and English-Ianguage primary and secondary
schools. According to UNESCO estimates, adult literacy in 1995 was

93. 2 per cent.

72. The State party was obliged under the Convention to submit its periodic
reports regularly. He was sure that the Commttee, as well as the Ofice of

the Hi gh Commi ssioner, would give the State party all possible assistance in

fulfilling that task.

73. M. Sherifis took the Chair

74. The CHAI RMAN said he woul d doubtl ess be echoing the views of sone
menbers in citing the case of Ml dives as an argunent for hol ding one session
of the Committee every year in New York, since Mldives had a permanent
representative there, but not in Geneva.

75. If he saw no objection, he would take it that the Committee w shed
M. Garvalov to prepare concludi ng observations on its review of the

i mpl enentati on of the Convention in Ml dives, for consideration at a | ater
nmeeti ng.

76. It was so deci ded.

The neeting rose at 12.55 p. m




